
 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL AND GENERAL 

PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

 Date: Wednesday, 15th December, 2021 

 Time: 6.30 pm 

 Venue: 
 

Guildhall 

 
 



2 

PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee 
Wednesday, 15 December 2021 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Adrian Gregson (L) 

 
Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) 

Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 
 

Councillor James Stanley (C) 

Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 
 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 
Part 1 

(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Sub-Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 2 

 Of the meeting held on 13th October 2021 to be approved and signed. 

 

5. Review of Alcohol & Drugs Policy & Procedure  

Page(s): 3 - 12 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Alison Darbyshire, HR Manager 
Tel: 01905 721159 

 That the Sub-Committee approves the amended Alcohol & Drugs Policy & 
Procedure attached at Appendix 1. 
 

 
 

 
 



4 

6. Adoption of a New Menopause Policy  

Page(s): 13 - 20 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Catherine Simcox, Human Resources Officer 
Tel: 01905 722043 

 That the Sub-Committee approves the new Menopause Policy attached at Appendix 
1. 
 

7. Outcome of Postal Vote Review - May 2021 Elections  

Page(s): 21 - 30 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Claire Chaplin, Democratic and Civic Services Manager 
Tel: 01905 722005 

 That the Sub-Committee note the findings of the review the proposed additional 

measures identified in the report to maintain the integrity of the process for the 
delivery of elections. 

 

8. Employee Facilities for Cycling to Work  

Page(s): 31 - 34 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer 
Tel: 01905 7223647 

 That the Sub-Committee support the recommendations in this report to provide 
and improve facilities to support staff to cycle to work to be added to the Council’s 
capital programme. 

 

9. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 

consideration. 
 



PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
13th October 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Adrian Gregson (Vice-Chair) in 
the Chair 

  
Councillors Bayliss, Gregson (Vice-Chair, in 

the Chair), Hodges, Mrs L. Hodgson, 
Mitchell, Stanley and Stephen 
 

Officers: David Blake, Managing Director 
Sian Stroud, Corporate Director – Planning 

and Governance 
 

14 Appointment of Substitutes  

 
Councillor Hodges for Councillor Denham. 

 
15 Apologies  

 

The Chair, Councillor Mitchell, had sent a message prior to the meeting advising 
that he was delayed in traffic following an accident in the city centre. Councillor 

Gregson took the Chair for the duration of the meeting. Councillor Mitchell arrived 
shortly after the start.  
 

16 Declarations of Interest  
 

None. 
 

17 Public Participation  

 
None. 

 
18 Minutes  

 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings held on 5th and 26th July 
2021 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
19 Covid-19 Staff Absence Report  

 
The Sub-Committee considered a report on the rates of Covid-19 infection in the 
Council’s workforce since the pandemic began in March 2020. This report had 

been requested by the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee. The Corporate 
Director – Planning and Governance presented the report and summarised both 

the Staff Policy which had been put in place in in March 2020, and the revised 
Policy which was introduced in July 2021 to reflect an increasing return to normal 
patterns of working with some mitigation measures still in place. 

 
It was highlighted that the Council had been able to mitigate risks and maintain 

business continuity throughout this period. Adherence by staff to updated Covid 
risk assessments with additional protections had helped to ensure that, while 
there have been some individual cases of Covid within the workforce, there have 

been no outbreaks as defined by public health. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 13th October 2021 2 

 
 

In response to questions from Sub-Committee Members, the Corporate Director 

explained that the Covid-19 vaccine is not mandatory and the Council cannot 
require staff to be vaccinated. However, the Council as an employer has actively 

promoted vaccination and the Staff Policy and has followed Government guidance. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the information presented in 

this report on the incidences of Covid in the Council’s workforce since the 
pandemic began in March 2020. 

 
20 Hybrid Working Policy  

 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on the introduction of a Hybrid Working 
Policy for staff. The Managing Director introduced the report and the Corporate 

Director – Planning and Governance explained the main points. In summary, the 
Policy built on the best experiences of the past 18 months whilst also taking the 
learning from previous ways of working. If adopted, the Policy would replace the 

Council’s Agile Working Policy. 
 

The Policy was supported by the Trade Unions and the Joint Consultative and 
Safety Committee. 
 

Officers responded to questions from Sub-Committee Members. The Corporate 
Director explained that the Policy will be reviewed after 12 months. 

 
Sub-Committee Members expressed support for the Policy. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee approve the Council’s Hybrid 
Working Policy for staff set out at Appendix 1 and the consequential 

withdrawal of the current Agile Working Policy set out at Appendix 2. 
 

21 Any Other Business  
 
None. 

 
22 Item Involving the Disclosure of Information  

 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 

following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act. 

 
23 Minutes (Exempt Items)  

 

RESOLVED: That the minutes (Exempt items) of the meeting held on 26th 
July 2021 to be approved and signed. 

 
 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. to 7.35p.m. 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

15th December 2021 

Page 2



    

 

 
 

Report to: Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee, 15th December 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Planning and Governance  
 

 
Subject: REVIEW OF ALCOHOL & DRUGS POLICY & PROCEDURE 

 
1. Recommendation 

 

1.1 That the Sub-Committee approves the amended Alcohol & Drugs Policy & 
Procedure attached at Appendix 1.  

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Alcohol & Drugs Policy & Procedure was last reviewed in 2013 and is due an 
update. 

2.2 It is important to keep this policy under review because being under the influence of 

intoxicating substances has serious health and safety implications, including in areas 
of the Council where staff are operating machinery. 

3. Key Changes 
 
3.1 The Policy & Procedure have been reviewed in conjunction with managers in 

operational services and it has been identified that the approach is still fit for 
purpose. The key change identified in the review is to introduce the option for 

random drug/alcohol testing more frequently where there are health and safety 
implications or concerns have been identified. 

3.2 The change has been discussed with and is supported by the trade unions and the 

Joint Consultative and Safety Committee. 

4. Implications 

 
4.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

More frequent drug and alcohol testing will result in higher costs but will help protect 

employees, the public and the Council from any potential health and safety incident 
where an employee is under the influence. 

 
4.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

The Council has responsibilities to ensure the safety of employees and the public. 

 
4.3 Risk Implications 

If no action is taken this could be a serious risk to the Council (in terms of reputation 
and potential claims) if employees are operating under the influence of drugs/alcohol 
and have an accident.  

  
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 5



    

 

4.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
None 

 
4.5 Equality Implications 

None. 

 
4.6 Human Resources Implications 

As above. 
 

4.7 Health and Safety Implications 

As above. 
 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Alison Darbyshire – HR Manager – 01905 721159.   
                                      alison.darbyshire@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: none  

  

Appendix 1: Alcohol and Drugs Policy & Procedure 

Page 4

mailto:alison.darbyshire@worcester.gov.uk


Worcester City Council 

 

 

Worcester City Council 

ALCOHOL & DRUGS 

POLICY & PROCEDURE 
DATE:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Title  Alcohol & Drugs Policy & Procedure 

Status  Draft 

Document Version V1.1e 

Author  Hilary Price 

Sponsor Alison Darbyshire  

Owner HR 

Approved by  

Approved date  

Review frequency 3 years 

Next Review:  

Version History  

Version Date Description 

1.1b Nov 2021 First draft of amended policy  

1.1c 16.11.21 CLT approved  

1.1d 16.11.21 Sub heading numbering added 

1.1e 24.11.21 Approved by JCSC 

   

   

   

   

Page 5 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Worcester City Council 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction....................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Purpose ............................................................................................................................ 3 

3. Scope ............................................................................................................................... 3 

6. Managers’ Responsibilities ............................................................................................... 5 

7. Employee Responsibilities ................................................................................................ 5 

8. Breaches of the Policy ...................................................................................................... 7 

10 Related Policies, Documents and Guidance ..................................................................... 8 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



Worcester City Council 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1. The Council is committed to providing a safe and productive work environment 

and to promoting the health, safety and wellbeing of its employees.  

1.2. The inappropriate use of alcohol or drugs can damage the health and wellbeing 

of employees and have far-reaching effects on their personal and working lives.  

At work, alcohol or drug misuse can result in reduced levels of attendance, poor 

work performance and increased health and safety risks not only for the 

individual concerned but also for others. Furthermore, the effects of alcohol or 

drug misuse are likely to be detrimental to the Council’s reputation and its ability 

to deliver high quality services. 

2. Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is: 

a. To help protect employees by raising awareness of the problems of drug and 
alcohol misuse and to encourage those with a problem to seek help;   

 

b. To ensure that employees’ use of either drugs or alcohol does not impair the 
safe and efficient running of the Council, or result in risks to the health and 

safety of themselves, other employees, customers and the general public;  
 

c. To comply with all relevant legislation in this area. 

   

3. Scope 

3.1. This policy covers the use and misuse of intoxicating substances, which include 

alcohol, solvents, legal and illegal drugs, prescription and over-the-counter 

medicines and other substances that could adversely affect work performance 

and/or health and safety.     

3.2. This policy applies to all employees. 

3.3. The Council also expects agency and casual workers, contractors, volunteers and 

others working on its behalf to comply with the policy. Failure to do so is likely 

to result in the working arrangements being terminated. 

 

4 Principles 

4.1. The Council promises to maintain the strictest confidentiality when dealing with 

individuals, within the limits of what is practicable and within the law. 

4.2. Employees seeking help will be allowed time off for treatment and every effort 

will be made to assist them in returning to good health and efficiency. 

Page 7



Worcester City Council 

 

4.3. Following treatment, subject to any disciplinary sanctions, the employee will be 

able to return to their substantive post unless it is considered that this would be 

inconsistent with the resolution of the employee’s alcohol or drug related problem. 

4.4. Every consideration will be given to finding suitable employment, using the 

Council’s redeployment policy, for those who are unable to resume their previous 

duties after medical treatment 

4.5. Employees who decline offers of a referral for assessment or treatment or who 

prematurely discontinue treatment may be subject to the disciplinary procedure. 

4.6. All employees will have the right to be accompanied at any formal discussion by a 

Trade Union Representative or colleague. 

4.7. For those who work in a safety critical area, due to the nature of their work 

employees may be automatically or randomly tested for alcohol or drugs. 

4.8. Where allegations of misuse are made and/or health and safety are at risk, the 

individual may be suspended from work and requested to be tested for alcohol 

and/or drug misuse. A refusal to be tested may be taken into account in any 

resultant disciplinary procedure. 

4.9. Where an employee has to drive or operate machinery/plant equipment as a 

requirement of his/her job (or whose job involves serious health and safety 

implications) a positive test for alcohol or drugs may be considered to be gross 

misconduct and therefore result in the termination of their employment. 

   

5 Referral Procedure       

5.1 Voluntary Referral 

 Where an employee voluntarily decides to seek help, he/she should contact 

Human Resources in order for a referral to Occupational Health to be made. 

5.2     Referral by Management 

 Where an employee has a capability problem which is suspected to be due to 

alcohol or drug misuse, a member of Human Resources or an appropriate line 

manager will arrange for an immediate test to be carried out followed by an 

interview which will be held with the manager as part of the normal  

capability procedure.   

 If the manager believes that the employee would benefit from a programme of 

treatment for alcohol or drug misuse, the employee will be offered a referral to 

Occupational Health which will suspend the capability or disciplinary 

procedure.  

Page 8



Worcester City Council 

 

 If the employee rejects the offer of referral, or OH indicates that no alcohol or 

drug problems exist, or if the employee fails to co-operate with OH, then 

normal capability or disciplinary measures will be applied.   

 The Capability or Disciplinary procedure is only suspended pending a 

satisfactory outcome of assessment and treatment.  

 

6. Managers’ Responsibilities 

 Managers are required to: 

a. be aware of the signs of alcohol and substance misuse and the effects on 

performance, attendance and health of employees; 

b. ensure the health, safety and welfare of employees and others with whom they 

come into contact;  

c. ensure that staff understand the policy and are aware of the rules and 

consequences regarding the use of alcohol, drugs and other intoxicating 

substances; 

d. ensure that employees are aware of the support that is available to them 

should they have a problem; 

e. intervene at an early stage where changes in performance, behaviour, sickness 

levels, attendance patterns are identified to establish whether alcohol or drug 

misuse is an underlying cause; 

f. provide support and assistance, where appropriate and for a reasonable period, 

to employees who are dependent upon intoxicating substances to help their 

recovery; 

g. Where a manager is aware, or suspects, that an employee is misusing 

intoxicating substances they are strongly advised to seek advice from Human 

Resources on the approach to be adopted; 

h. Such matters will be treated confidentially as far as is legitimately and legally 

possible. For example, it may be necessary in order to provide effective 

support for information to be shared with others, for example, Occupational 

Health.  

 

7. Employee Responsibilities  

7.1. Employees are required to familiarise themselves with this policy and comply 

with its provisions; 

Page 9



Worcester City Council 

 

7.2. They are expected to present a professional, courteous and efficient image to 

those with whom they come into contact at all times. They therefore have a 

personal responsibility to adopt a responsible attitude towards drinking and 

taking prescribed and over-the-counter drugs; 

7.3. Employees are not permitted to possess, store, trade or sell controlled drugs 

on Council premises or bring the Council into disrepute by engaging in such 

activities outside of work. The only exception would be where an employee 

has a prescription; 

7.4. Employees are strongly encouraged to seek help if they have concerns 

regarding their alcohol or drug consumption. It is recommended that they 

approach either their line manager or Human Resources in the first instance so 

that they can arrange for the provision of appropriate support to help speedy 

rehabilitation, for example, referral to Occupational Health; 

7.5. Employees are expected to co-operate with any support and assistance 

provided by the Council to address an alcohol or drug misuse problem; 

7.6. Employees should not, even with the best of motives, “cover up” for, or collude 

with, a colleague with an alcohol or drug related problem but instead should 

encourage the individual to seek help; 

7.7. Where the individual concerned does not wish to come forward to seek help, 

and their colleague(s) genuinely suspect that the individual may be misusing 

drugs or alcohol, they have a responsibility to raise their concerns with the 

employee’s line manager and/or Human Resources.  

At Work 

7.8. Employees must report for work, and remain throughout the working day, in a 

fit and safe condition to undertake their duties and not be under the influence of 

alcohol or drugs.  Exceptions apply to drugs prescribed for the individual or over 

the counter medicines used for their intended purpose (in accordance with the 

prescriber, pharmacist or manufacturer) and where the safety of the individual 

or others with whom they come into contact is not compromised. 

7.9. Employees must notify their manager immediately should they be prescribed 

medication or plan to take over the counter medicines that may cause side 

effects and impair their ability to undertake their duties safely and effectively. 

This is particularly important if they occupy a post where it is not only their 

own personal safety but those of others that could be jeopardised. 

Outside Working Hours    

7.10. Employees must not consume intoxicating substances before coming on duty 

or when they may be required to attend work at short notice, for example 

when they are on call.   

7.11. Intoxicating substances such as alcohol may remain in the system for some 

time and even small amounts can impair performance and jeopardise safety. 

Page 10



Worcester City Council 

 

Employees are personally responsible for allowing sufficient time for the 

intoxicating substance to leave their system before reporting for work. 

8. Breaches of the Policy 

8.1. The Council will, where appropriate to do so, adopt a constructive and supportive 

approach when dealing with employees who may be experiencing  drug or 

alcohol dependency/addiction. 

8.2. This means that employees seeking assistance for a substance misuse problem 

will not have their employment terminated simply because of their 

dependence/addiction.  

8.3. However, if performance, attendance or behaviour is unacceptable, despite any 

support and assistance that can be offered, ultimately dismissal may be 

unavoidable.  

8.4. Notwithstanding the above, there will be circumstances where breaches of the 

policy, whether dependency-related or not, will be treated as a disciplinary 

matter and may result in the summary dismissal of the employee.  Examples of 

issues that will be subject to disciplinary action, including the possibility of 

dismissal, are: 

a. deliberate disregard for personal safety and that of others associated with the 

use of intoxicating substances; 

b. unacceptable behaviour in the workplace associated with the use of intoxicating 

substances; 

c. being found incapable of performing normal duties satisfactorily and safely as a 

result of consuming alcohol or taking drugs; 

d. possession, consumption, dealing/trafficking, selling storage of controlled drugs 

either on work premises or engaging in such activities outside of work; 

e. being disqualified from driving as a result of alcohol or drug related offences 

(employees required under their contract of employment to drive a vehicle); 

8.5. This list is illustrative only and should not be regarded as exclusive or exhaustive. 

Disciplinary action will be in all cases proportionate to the circumstances of the 

breach of the policy.   

8.6. Where evidence warrants, the Council will inform the police of illegal drug use or 

any activity or behaviour over which there are concerns as to its legality. For 

example, it would be necessary to report criminal behaviour associated with 

alcohol abuse such as having a drink-driving accident in a work vehicle. 

 

 

Page 11



Worcester City Council 

 

9. Definitions 

9.1. Intoxicating substance 

A substance that changes the way the user feels mentally or physically. it includes 

alcohol, illegal drugs, prescription medicines (for example tranquillisers, anti-

depressants, over-the-counter medicines), solvents, glue, lighter fuel.    

9.2. Controlled drugs 

These are drugs covered by the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971. They include both drugs with 

no current medical uses as well as medicinal drugs that are prone to misuse. All are 

considered likely to result in substantial harm to individuals and society.   

9.3. Harmful/problematic use or misuse 

Use of an intoxicating substance or substances that harms health, physical, 

psychological, social or work performance but without dependency being present. 

9.4. Dependency 

A compulsion to keep taking an intoxicating substance either to avoid effects of 

withdrawal (physical dependence) or to meet a need for stimulation or tranquillising 

effects or pleasure (psychological dependence). 

9.5. Addiction    

A state of periodic or chronic intoxication produced by the repeated intake of an 

intoxicating substance. This means that a dependency has developed to such an extent 

that it has serious detrimental effects on the user and often their family as well, and 

the individual has great difficulty discontinuing their use. The substance has taken over 

their life.   

 

10 Related Policies, Documents and Guidance 

 Capability Procedure 

 Disciplinary Procedure   

 Employees’ Code of Conduct  

 Redeployment Policy  

 Any employment related professional code of conduct 

 

  

Page 12



    

 

 
 

Report to: Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee, 15th December 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Planning and Governance  
 

 
Subject: ADOPTION OF A NEW MENOPAUSE POLICY 

 
1. Recommendation 

 

1.1 That the Sub-Committee approves the new Menopause Policy attached at 
Appendix 1.  

2. Background 
 

2.1 People suffering from symptoms related to the menopause are the fastest growing 
demographic in the workplace [CIPD, 2021] 

2.2 Supporting and creating a positive and open environment between the Council and 

someone affected by the menopause can help prevent the person from: 

 Losing confidence in their skills and abilities 

 Feeling that they need to take time off work and hide the reason for it 
 Having increased mental health conditions (stress, anxiety, panic attacks) 
 Leaving their job. 

3. Preferred Option  
 

3.1 To adopt the new Menopause Policy attached at Appendix 1.  This will support the 
Council’s equality and inclusion strategy and be aligned to other policies, including 
Sickness, Flexible Working and Dignity at Work. 

3.2 The proposed policy has been discussed with and is supported by the trade unions 
and the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee. 

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

4.1 Not adopting this policy could leave the Council open to the risk of possible direct 

and indirect discrimination. [Rooney v Leicester City Council, 2019. Disability 
discrimination] 

5. Implications 
 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

Minimal cost to implement appropriate adjustments in the workplace. 
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
This policy allows us to be clear on how we are complying with legislation. 
 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



    

 

5.3 Risk Implications 
 See 5.1 

 
5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

Confirms the Council’s commitment to recognise and support menopause in the 

workplace. It does not form part of any employees’ T&Cs and we may amend at any 
time. 

 
5.5 Equality Implications 

Menopause is not in itself a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010, 

however ET case law demonstrates how an employer’s treatment of staff undergoing 
the menopause can potentially give rise to sex, age and/or disability discrimination. 

 
5.6 HR Implications 

Menopause is cited by CIPD as a key recruitment and retention issue. Women 
experiencing menopause are often at the peak of their skills and experience and the 
Council should support and recognise this valuable talent pool.  All Wider 

Management will be issued with written guidance on how to manage menopause at 
work. 

 
5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

There is a strong compliance case, with the Council having a legal obligation to 

ensure a healthy and safe working environment for all menopausal employees. 
 

 
Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Catherine Simcox, Telephone 01905 722043, Email 

Catherine.simcox@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None  

 
 
Appendix 1: Menopause Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 14



Worcester City Council 

 

Worcester City Council 

MENOPAUSE POLICY 

 
 

Version History 

Version Date Description 

0.1 16/11/21 Draft document 

0.2 24/11/21 Approved by JCSC 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Title  Menopause Policy 

Status  Draft 

Document Version V0.2 

Author  Catherine Simcox 

Sponsor Sian Stroud 

Owner Human Resources 

Approved by  

Approved date  

Review frequency Every 3 years 

Next Review:  

Page 15 Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



 2 

1. Contents 

MENOPAUSE POLICY ................................................................................................ 2 

1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................. 2 

2. PURPOSE ............................................................................................ 2 

3. SCOPE ............................................................................................... 2 

4. DEFINITION OF MENOPAUSE ................................................................ 2 

5. THE EFFECTS OF MENOPAUSE ............................................................... 3 

6. DISCRIMINATION ................................................................................ 3 

7. COMMUNICATION ................................................................................ 4 

8. MAKING REASONABLE ADJUSTMENTS .................................................... 4 

9. TRAINING ........................................................................................... 5 

10. BEHAVIOUR OF OTHERS ....................................................................... 5 

11. RELATED POLICIES .............................................................................. 5 

 

 
 

MENOPAUSE POLICY 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

The Council is committed to fostering an inclusive and supportive working 
environment for all staff. We recognise that many of our employees will 

experience the menopause and that for some, the menopause will have an 
adverse impact on their working lives. 

2. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to raise awareness of the menopause and the 
impact of the menopause in the workplace.  We aim to encourage open  

conversations between line managers and employees.  
 

We are committed to supporting staff who are affected by the menopause and to 
provide reasonable adjustments where needed and signposting relevant advice 

and assistance to anyone who needs it. 

3. SCOPE 
 

The menopause is a natural stage in the biological female reproductive cycle 

which usually occurs between 45 and 55 years of age but it can also happen 
earlier or later in someone's life. For many people symptoms last about 4 years, 

but in some cases symptoms can last a lot longer.   

4. DEFINITION OF MENOPAUSE 
 

There are 3 different stages to the menopause: 

Page 16



 3 

 
• perimenopause – this marks the end of reproductive years and can start 

8-10 years before menopause. Most notice symptoms in their 40’s. 

• menopause – is the point when a person no longer has menstrual 
periods for at least 12 months. Most notice symptoms in their 50’s. 

• postmenopause - during this stage, menopausal symptoms tend to 
subside, but may continue for 4-5 years. 

 

Some people might also experience early menopause or go through surgical 
menopause earlier in their lives. These types of menopause can be medically 

complicated, so employers should consider this when supporting their staff. 
 
All stages and types of the menopause are different and symptoms can vary 

from person to person, and range from very mild to severe.  We may refer you 
to Occupational Health for an assessment and guidance on your condition. 

5. THE EFFECTS OF MENOPAUSE 
 

Physical symptoms of the menopause can include: 
 

 hot flushes (brief and sudden surges of heat usually felt in the face, neck and 
chest) 

 insomnia that can make people feel tired and irritable 
 fatigue 
 poor concentration 

 headaches 
 skin irritation 

 recurrent urinary tract infections (UTIs) including cystitis 
 heavy and /or prolonged periods (Menorrhagia)  

 muscle and joint stiffness, aches and pains 
 weight gain 
 palpitations (heartbeats that become more noticeable) 

 skin changes (dryness, acne, general itchiness) 
 

As a result of the above, or as an extension of the hormone imbalance, 
individuals going through menopause can also experience psychological 
difficulties, including: 

 
 depression 

 anxiety 
 panic attacks 
 mood swings 

 irritability 
 problems with memory and reduced concentration 

 loss of confidence 
 
It is also commonly acknowledged that Hormone Replacement Therapy, the 

medication which is often prescribed for menopause, can have side effects which 
can cause problems at work. These include nausea, headaches and leg cramps. 

6. DISCRIMINATION 
 

Page 17



 4 

If an employee is put at a disadvantage or treated less favourably because of 
their menopause symptoms, this could be discriminatory if connected to a 
protected characteristic. 

7. COMMUNICATION 
 

Someone with menopausal symptoms should be supported in the same way as 

an employee with any ongoing health condition. Small adjustments to 
someone’s job or working pattern could help manage symptoms and allow them 
to continue to perform well in their role.  

 
An individual is usually best placed to recognise what might help them so the 

Council encourages employees to have an open and honest conversation with 
their line manager, that will be treated with sensitivity.  A line manager may 
also start a discussion with an employee if they notice a change in wellness, 

behaviour or performance that may be related to the menopause.   
 

We understand that some employees may feel uncomfortable talking about 
personal information with their line manager. If this is the case, employees are 
encouraged to approach another senior member of staff or HR.  

 
Line managers will also arrange follow up sessions to evaluate the effectiveness 

of any adjustments put in place. 

8. MAKING APPROPRIATE ADJUSTMENTS  
 

The Council has a legal duty to ensure working conditions do not exacerbate 

person’s symptoms, but this approach could also identify adjustments that could 
help an employee perform to their full potential.  

 
The line manager will explore appropriate adjustments to the role or working 

environment. These are assessed on a case by case basis according to the role 
and needs of the individual and the business needs of the Council. It may be 
guided by medical advice or an Occupational Health referral.  

 
Risk assessments could also help to identify potential issues including: 

 
 working long shifts 
 unable to take regular toilet breaks 

 the job requires restrictive clothing 
 the job does not have much flexibility 

 
Examples of adjustments could include:  
 

 changing the working location so employees are closer to toilet facilities, 
away from hot and cold spots around the office or to ensure greater 

access to natural light 
 allowing changes to our normal rules on work wear or adapt uniforms to 

improve comfort. 

 implementing further temperature control, such as access to a fan 
 assessing how work is allocated and whether an employee is affected at 

particular points of the day  

Page 18



 5 

 limiting the time wearing personal protective equipment (PPE) such as 
face masks (subject to any COVID-secure measures required) 

 providing easy access to cold drinking water 

 allowing additional rest breaks 
 considering flexible working  

 allowing for more frequent breaks to go to the toilet. 
 be understanding about someone working from home if they have very 

heavy bleeding. 

 providing a quiet area to work to minimise headaches. 
 signposting to the Employee Assistance Programme for counselling and 

practical advice. 
 identifying a supportive colleague to talk to, such as a Mental Health First 

Aider. 

 discussing whether it would be helpful for the employee to visit their GP, 
if they haven’t already. 

 
Once any adjustments are agreed, these will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to 
ensure they are having the required effect.  

9. TRAINING 
 

The Council will ensure that all levels of management are provided with written 

guidance on the effects of menopause; how to hold discussions with employees 
who are experiencing menopause and reasonable adjustments that can be made 
to an employee’s role to help minimise symptoms. 

10. BEHAVIOUR OF OTHERS 
 

There is an expectation on all employees to conduct themselves in a helpful and 

open-minded manner towards colleagues. The Council maintains a zero-
tolerance approach to bullying and harassment and we will treat all complaints 

seriously.  
 
If an employee feels that they have been mistreated in any way by a colleague 

because of matters related to the menopause, they should make their concerns 
known to their line manager or HR. 

11. RELATED POLICIES 
Sickness absence Management Policy 
Dignity at Work Policy 

Flexible Working Policy 
Hybrid Policy. 

Capability (Managing Underperformance) Procedure 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



  

   

 

 
 

Report to: Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee, 15th December 2021 
 

Report of: Returning Officer / Deputy Returning Officer  
 

 
Subject: OUTCOME OF POSTAL VOTE REVIEW – MAY 2021 ELECTIONS  

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee note the findings of the review the proposed additional 
measures identified in the report to maintain the integrity of the process for 

the delivery of elections.  
 

2. Executive summary 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to present the outcomes of a review carried out by the 

Returning Officer together with the Electoral Services Team into why 502 electors 
who had requested postal votes for the 6th May 2021 elections failed to receive their 

packs at the same time as the initial delivery and receipt of postal vote packs which 
took place in the week commencing 20 April 2021. 

2.2 This report also sets out proposed additional measures to improve the quality control 

of the postal vote process of future elections to ensure that the electorate and all 
stakeholders can trust the process will be fair and all the electorate have the 

opportunity to exercise their vote. 

2.3  The overall conclusion is that running three elections in parallel resulted in multiple 
file transfers between Council and the service provider which led to one batch of 

processing not being completed in full. Interrogation of the Xpress system shows 
that all requests for postal votes were processed and transferred to Civica Election 

Services (CES) for sorting and printing. CES and Royal Mail, who were responsible 
for delivering the printed packages to voters, also confirmed that all of their 
processes were followed correctly. However, it is evident that quality control 

processes over the transfer of data between systems can be improved to avoid a 
reoccurrence of this situation and maintain the integrity of the process for the 

delivery of elections. 

3. Introduction   
  

3.1 In May 2021 the Council managed elections for the Police and Crime Commissioner, 
the County Council and the City Council in parallel. In the week prior to the polling 

date of 6 May, the Elections Office began to receive queries from candidates and 
agents stating that whilst canvassing households, some residents had informed 
them, they had not received their postal vote pack.  

 
 

Page 21 Agenda Item 7



  

   

 

3.2 This situation is not uncommon. At every election, the Elections Office receive a 
number of a calls from voters advising that they have not received their postal vote 

packs. However, it became evident by Tuesday 4 May that the number of postal vote 
packs reported as not being received was greater than would normally be expected.  

3.3 Remedial action was put in place once the Council became aware of the scale of the 

problem. This ensured that every voter who had not received a pack was provided 
with one through hand-delivery and that every voter that wished to vote was able to 

do so. 

3.4 Following the May 2021 Elections a review was carried out by the Deputy Returning 
Officer and the Electoral Services Team to establish why the high number of postal 

vote packs were not delivered on time. 

3.5 The review specifically considered: 

 
 The processes and controls around postal vote printing and issue 

 The sequence of events and findings at each stage 
 An assessment of the overall numbers of voters affected 
 The approach, effectiveness and timeliness of remedial action taken to rectify the 

issue once the Council became aware of the scale of the problem 
 Customer interactions including the outcomes and level of satisfaction 

 The general capacity and capability of the Electoral Services Team. 
 
3.6 During the review the following stakeholders were consulted: 

 
 Deputy Director, Governance 

 Electoral Services Officer 
 Electoral Services Administrator 
 Xpress System Support  

 CES Consultant  
 CES Manager  

 Royal Mail Postal Voting Team 
 
4. Background – Previous Method of Postal Vote Print and Issue  

 
4.1 In previous years approximately 12,500 postal vote packs containing voting 

instructions and corresponding postal vote statement have been printed by a 
printing and lithographic company based in Cheltenham, CLK Media. Ballot papers 
have also previously been printed by CLK Media. 

 
4.2 Printed postal votes packs were then delivered to the Guildhall and a team of Postal 

Vote Issuers, approximately 24, would include the corresponding ballot paper in the 
postal vote packs. Postal Vote Supervisors including the Deputy Returning Officer 
would then carry out an agreed number of random checks of each batch of 

completed postal vote packs and then seal the packs. Once all postal vote packs 
were checked and sealed, Royal Mail would collect the packs from the Guildhall and 

deliver to electors.  

4.3 This method of postal vote print and issue provided a clear audit trial of the different 
roles and responsibilities throughout the various processes and facilitated the 

Returning Officer’s staff to be in control of checking and quality control measures.  

Page 22



  

   

 

 

4.4 For the May 2021 elections, given the unprecedented scale of the elections and an 

anticipated increase in postal vote applications, a decision was made by the Returning 
Officer to procure the services of Civica Election Services (CES) to print postal vote 
packs and the corresponding ballot paper together. The procurement arrangement 

also included CES being responsible for the hand over arrangements of printed postal 
vote packs to Royal Mail to deliver.  

4.5 The decision to use CES negated the need to employ Postal Vote Issuers which would 
have proved problematic in complying with Covid social distancing measures. It also 
offered greater resilience and support to the core Election Team who were already 

working at full capacity managing the complexities of delivering three elections by 
virtue of CES’s experience in dealing with large scale and multiple elections: CES are 

procured by approximately 130 authorities nationally to print postal vote packs. 

5. Outcome of the Review 

 
5.1 The processes and controls around postal vote print and issue 

Governance  

 
5.1.1 The Council’s Legal Services prepared and executed a contract between Worcester City 

Council and Civica Election Services Ltd. CES assigned a Project Manager to be the 
contact between them and the Returning Officer.  

Schedule of data upload 

5.1.2 A schedule of dates when data would be uploaded by Electoral Services and received 
by CES was agreed by both parties.  

Proof check and sign off   

5.1.3 After receipt of data by CES they prepare a Client Data Report which identities the 
total number of postal vote packs to be printed. The client is asked to check the report 

against a check list provided by CES and is then required to provide confirmation that 
the numbers are correct.  

Royal Mail Delivery Plan  

5.1.4 The Returning Officer was required to agree a delivery plan with Royal Mail which 
identified the estimated number of postal vote packs to be collected from CES by Royal 

Mail and the dates for collection.  

5.2 The sequence of events and findings at each stage 

 
5.2.1 The stages of processing data in the weeks prior to the election are set out in the 

following table.  

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 23



  

   

 

 

Date  Event  Findings  

1 March  Mailing Plan sent to Royal 
Mail by Elections Manager. 

Royal Mail were informed by the Elections 
Manager of the numbers of postal votes 

packs to be collected from CES. This we 
stated to be actuals. However, the 

number could only be an estimate as 
postal vote applications did not conclude 
until 20 April.  

1 March  Contract in place between 
Worcester City Council and 

Civica Election Services 
Ltd and schedule of data 

downloads.  

 

23 March 

– 8 April  

Initial Postal vote data 

sent to CES.  
 

Discussions between CES and Electoral 

Services took place between this period as 
shown at Appendix 1. 

During this period CES and Electoral 

Services questioned the accuracy of the 
data sent and received by both parties. 

The difference discussed were of the order 
of 3 or 4 postal packs. 

In order to resolve the question of the 

discrepancies of 3 or 4 packs, on 6 April 
CES requested that all data be resent so 

that totals could be reconciled. The 
additional batch was not included in these 
control totals.  

The subsequent investigation found that 
during this period one file sent across to 

CES contained an additional batch that 
had been processed but this file was not 
in the correct format and was exchanged 

for one that did not contain the additional 
batch.   

12 April  CES sent a client data 
report to Electoral 

Services identifying the 
total number of postal 
votes packs being sent to 

print.  

CES informed Electoral Services that they 
were sending to print a total of 13,249 

postal votes packs at that date. 

After further integration of the Xpress 
system it is understood by Electoral 

Services that the data sent to CES totalled 
13,246 postal vote packs.   

Therefore, there was no overall material 
difference in the number of data items 

sent and received.  

 
 

 

Page 24



  

   

 

 
5.3 Assessment of the overall numbers of voters affected 

 
5.3.1 Once contacts from voters were received regarding missing postal vote packs, 

Electoral Services were able to identify a specific batch of postal vote packs that had 

not been received by electors which amounted to 502. This assessment was made by 
interrogating the Xpress system to find a common link between voters that had 

reported they had not received their postal vote pack. The Xpress system showed in 
each case a sent date of 1 April against the 502 electors, thus indicating that a 
specific batch had failed.  

 
5.4 Actions taken to confirm missing postal votes pack and ensure that they 

were replaced 
 

5.4.1 Determining the specific batch of postal vote packs that had not been received by 
electors resulted in the Elections Office printing replacement postal vote packs and 
placing a stop on the existing voters set up in the system to prevent duplication.  

 
5.4.2 The Deputy Director, Governance, was appointed by the Retuning Officer to 

coordinate the remedial action. From the afternoon of Tuesday 4 May until the 
afternoon of Thursday 6 May volunteer staff from across the Council together with 
casual Electoral Services Staff worked tirelessly to rectify the issue. Under the 

direction and supervision of the assigned DRO, teams were set up to compile the 
postal vote packs, carry out quality control checks, seal packs and hand deliver 

postal vote packs to those affected.  
 
5.4.3 All 502 postal vote packs were hand delivered to the affected electorate by afternoon 

on 6 May 2021. Electors who received these packs did not indicate that they had 
already received packs. Therefore, it is clear that the entire batch was missing. Of 

those 502 packs delivered, approximately 300 were returned and included in the 
count. 

 

5.5 Customer interactions  
 

5.5.1 During the recovery stages, the Retuning Officer and Deputy Returning Officer 
maintained regular discussions with candidates and agents to ensure they agreed 
and were satisfied with the planned actions for rectifying the issue. A media 

campaign was put in place to alert the electorate and advise on action that was 
being taken to rectify the issue. Update and contact information was posted on the 

Council’s website and other social media platforms and the Returning Officer carried 
out interviews with the local media.  

 

5.5.2 Staff responsible for hand-delivering postal vote packs to the affected electorate 
provided an apology, guidance and support to electors on the doorstep and ensured 

electors were aware of the method for retuning their completed postal vote pack and 
the timescales for receipt.  

 

5.5.3 Candidates and agents were satisfied that all reasonable steps had been taken by 
the Returning Officer to rectify the issue. Delivery staff received a high level of 

gratitude and compliments from electors on receipt of their postal vote packs. To 
date, the Returning Officer has received and responded to one formal complaint 

received from an affected postal voter who has found the response satisfactory. 
 

Page 25



  

   

 

  
 

5.6 The general capacity and capability of the Electoral Services Team 
 
Capacity 

 
5.6.1 The planning and delivery of the May 2021 elections had different challenges to 

previous years in that for the first time 3 elections were being held on the same day 
and all arrangements to deliver the polls, count and verification were subject Covid 
safety measures set by Government.  

 
5.6.2 The operational core Election Team during the run-up to a single or double election 

consists of up to 3FTE’s. Due the complexity of planning and delivering 3 elections 
with Covid restrictions in place, the operational core Election Team was increased to 

4TFE’s. 
 
5.6.3 A wider strategic and operational project team consisting of the Deputy Returning 

Officer and representatives from Property, Health and Safety, Communications, Legal 
and Finance services was also put in place to support the core team.  

 
Capability 
 

5.6.4 The Elections Team was led by a very experienced Elections Manager with over 10 
years’ experience of running local and national elections, under the supervision of 

the similarly experienced Deputy Returning Officer. The two core members of the 
Elections Team had experience of managing previous elections and had agreed to 
take on higher level duties to provide a broad base of support for the Elections 

Manager. The additional member of the team also had several years’ experience in 
supporting elections at the Council and was familiar with many of the routines 

involved. 
 
5.6.5 The uploading of data to CES was the responsibility of the Elections Manager 

supported by a member of the core Elections Team.  The task of uploading data is 
not complicated in itself as once the data files have been selected, the Xpress 

system gives the option to export the data directly to CES. However, the Council has 
not on any previous occasion managed three elections simultaneously and the 
appointment of CES provided an opportunity to add further experience and capability 

to the process. 
 

6. Conclusion of the Review  
 

6.1 Following the close of receipt of postal vote applications on 20 April 2021, CES 

provided the Elections Team with a final client data report which identified the total 
number of postal vote packs printed. The total number reported by CES was 14,401 

and CES further confirmed that this was the number of postal vote packs collected 
by Royal Mail for delivery. 
 

6.2 The total number of postal vote packs shown by the Xpress system was 14,398 
resulting in difference of 3: the same position as at 12 April noted above. 

 
6.3 As part of the review, CES were sent the data relating to the 502 postal vote packs 

that had not been received by the electorate. CES cross checked this against their 
records of addresses of postal vote packs printed.  

Page 26



  

   

 

 
6.4 CES advised initially that the data for 88 of the 502 postal vote packs had not been 

received from the Elections Team and that the remaining 414 postal vote packs data 
had been received and printed.  

 

6.5 Royal Mail were contacted and asked to investigate and confirm if all postal vote 
packs collected from CES had been delivered. 

 
6.6 Royal Mail confirmed that the delivery staff that cover the rounds for the addressees 

had been interviewed and confirmed all postal vote packs were delivered and that 

the delivery office was clear of postal vote packs.  
 

6.7 As this review did not produce a satisfactory conclusion further analysis was 
undertaken by CES at the request of the Returning Officer. A file was identified that 

had been transferred by Xpress in April along with an alternative version that was 
understood by all to be a duplicate. It is not clear why two files were sent rather 
than one but, in any event, the file that contained the additional batch was not in the 

correct format for CES to process for three-election postal packs. Therefore the 
‘duplicate’ was used but this in fact did not contain the additional data.  

 
7. Overall Conclusion  
 

7.1 To conclude, the review has produced a clear understanding of how and when the 
specific batch of postal vote processing failed. This was due to multiple file transfers 

using an inconsistent format. The two suppliers contracted to print and deliver postal 
votes have confirmed that all of their processes were followed correctly. It is clear, 
therefore, that procedures and quality control processes can be improved to avoid a 

reoccurrence of this situation and maintain the integrity of the process for the 
delivery of elections in future.  

8. Summary of Key Finding and Proposed System Changes  
 

8.1 The body of this report examines the details of the issue which arose during the 

planning and delivery of the May 2021 elections and the remedial action taken. 
There are a number of key findings which underpin the recommendations as follows. 

 

No. Key Finding  Proposed system changes 

1 Capability of Core Elections Team –  
It became evident during the run up to the 

election that the two members of the core team 
responsibly for uploading data to CES had 
different interpretations of the functionality of 

the Xpress system.  

 
1. Refresher training on Xpress 

Management System for 
core Electoral Services Team 
and Deputy Retuning Officer. 

 
2. Compilation of standard 

operating procedures.   

2 CES – Client Data Report –  

The client data reports provided by CES identify 
the data as the number of “postal vote packs” 
whilst the Xpress system identifies the data as 

the number of “ballot papers”. The different 
report format caused confusion and proved time 

consuming in reconciling the totals between CES 
and the Xpress system.  

 

3. Requirement that CES and 
Xpress have identical report 
formats to ensure accurate 

reconciliation. 

Page 27



  

   

 

 

3 Xpress System Functionality –  
The Xpress system exports live data files to CES 
and as Xpress is updated with new applications 

when the live data changes. To carry out 
reconciliation checks against the client data 

reports requires further time-consuming 
interrogation of the Xpress system.     
 

 
4. Copy and save as an audit 

trail live data base at each 

stage of exporting to CES.  

4  Confirmation of Final Postal Votes Number Prior 
to Printing -   

This task was the responsibility of the Elections 
Manager. There was no escalation of the 

ongoing discussions with CES regarding the 
accuracy of the data dating from 23 March until 
8 April with either the Retuning Officer or 

Deputy Returning Officer 

 
 

5. Deputy Returning Officer to 
be responsible for the final 

sign off of the number of 
postal vote packs to be 
printed on a daily basis or 

per batch if more than one 
batch is sent per day. 

 
6. Deputy Retuning Officer to 

be responsible for the 

approval of the accuracy of 
data being printed and for 

signing off client data 
reports sent by CES.  

5 Third Party Relationship with Royal Mail –  
CES manage the arrangement for the collection 
and delivery of postal vote packs by Royal Mail 

as part of the contract between CES and the City 
Council. Royal Mail required the Returning 

Officer to complete a “Mailing Plan” identifying 
the number of postal vote packs to be collected 
from CES and the date delivery to the electorate 

would commence.  
 

This plan was sent to Royal Mail on 1 March and 
at that time identified an estimated quantity of 

postal vote packs to be collected from CES.    
 
CES verbally advised that Royal Mail collected all 

postal vote packs printed.  

 
7. Updated mailing plan 

identifying exact numbers of 

postal votes packs to be 
collected and delivered to be 

agreed prior to collection.  
 
8. Formal confirmation required 

from Royal Mail of the exact 
number of postal votes 

packs collected.   

6 Communication Plan – 

Remedial action was put in place once the 
Council became aware of the scale of the 

problem on Tuesday 4 May. The remedial action 
was reactive to candidates and agents reports 
from the electorate that their postal vote had 

not arrived. This meant there was a limited time 
period before the election rectify the issue.    

 
 
 

 

9. Communications plan to 
include further engagement 

with electors and key 
stakeholders regarding when 
and how to contact the 

elections team if postal vote 
not delivered.    

Page 28



  

   

 

7 Improvement Plan – 
An improvement plan is compiled by the Deputy 

Returning Officer following every election in 
consultation with all stakeholders. The 

improvement plan is considered by CLT and 
agreed by the Returning Officer.  

 
10.The improvement plan 

following the May 2021 
elections to take account of 

these recommendations and 
the Returning Officer to 
agree a process of reporting 

to satisfy stakeholders that 
the necessary improvements 

are being delivered.  

 

 
 
Contact Officers:   

Claire Chaplin – Democratic and Civic Services Manager 
01905 722005, claire.chaplin@worcester.gov.uk  

Background Papers: None.  
 
 

  

Page 29

mailto:claire.chaplin@worcester.gov.uk


  

   

 

Appendix 1 
 

Extract from emails exchanged between CES and Council Officers 
 
The following extract provides a summary of the discussions that took place regarding the 

reconciliations of overall control totals in April 2020. This identifies the duplication of files 
on 6 April which, following further investigation, was found to have created the processing 

failure.  
 
 
I’ve composed a timeline of your PVS data and proofs, hopefully this will help with any confusion surrounding the 
postal pack issues. All proofs and CDRs are still on sharepoint for you to view the figures - Postal Packs - All 
Documents (cesvotes.com) 
 
23/03/2021 – we received your initial PVS data 
 
01/04/2021 - I sent across your initial PVS proofs and CDR. [Council officers] queried the CDR as there seemed to 
be a discrepancy over 4 electors, I asked [a Member of your team] whether any changes had been made to your 
system since you sent us the data and whether you wanted to query this with Xpress. [The Council Officer] 
responded that although he wasn’t happy with the numbers it wasn’t worth delaying over 4 electors.  
 
05/04/2021 - I sent you an email to say that we had come across an issue when processing your early additions 

data. We had received PCCE only records in your initial file and then the same people were coming through as 

County and Local only - so the elector would have received 2 packs. I then asked for you to resupply your 

entire PVS data again as this way it would ensure that the electors only received 1 pack.  

 

06/04/2021 - you emailed to say you had resubmitted the data and we may have received it twice.  

 

07/04/2021 - I sent across proofs and CDR  

 

08/04/2021 - you called to say the data didn’t seem correct to you and asked us to use the other file you 

uploaded, which we did. I then resent the proofs and CDR to you - Postal Packs - All Documents (cesvotes.com). 

You then emailed with sign off for these records and we went to print based on this sign off.  

 

12/04/2021 - I sent across another CDR as an FYI this is what we are printing - FYI proofs - All Documents 
(cesvotes.com) 

 

23/04/2021 - I sent across proofs and CDR for your additions that were sent across on the 20th - Additions - All 
Documents (cesvotes.com) 
 
If you have any further queries, please feel free to contact me.  
 
Thanks,  
 

Page 30

https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs%2FFYI%20proofs
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs%2FFYI%20proofs
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs%2FAdditions
https://portal.cesvotes.com/sites/LA/WorcesterCityCouncil/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fsites%2FLA%2FWorcesterCityCouncil%2FDocuments%2FElections%2FMay%202021%2FPostal%20Packs%2FAdditions


 

 
 

Report to: Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee, 15th December 2021 
 

Report of: Deputy Director - Corporate Policy and Strategy 
 

 
Subject: EMPLOYEE FACILITIES FOR CYCLING TO WORK 

 
1. Recommendations 
 

1.1 That the Sub-Committee support the recommendations in this report to 
provide and improve facilities to support staff to cycle to work to be added 

to the Council’s capital programme. 

2. Background 

 
2.1 At the March meeting of this Sub-Committee, a sustainable travel to work report was 

requested to review the current position, present examples of best practice and 

include proposals to develop a fresh package to boost sustainable travel.  

2.2 This report focused on proposals to encourage employees to commute via cycling. 

Reports on other aspects of sustainable travel to work, including public transport, will 
follow.  

2.3 Objectives and actions regarding cycling to work feature within the Council’s adopted 

Environmental Sustainability Strategy and associated Action Plan (agreed by 
Environment Committee in March 2021). Under the Carbon Neutral Council theme, 

the ‘low emission commuting’ action specifies that the Council will provide cycle 
storage and showering facilities in all workplaces.   
 

3. Cycle to work scheme  
 

3.1 The “Cycle Scheme” has been available for staff to benefit from since 2014. This is a 
salary sacrifice scheme and can reduce price of a bike by 25 - 39% through reduced 
tax and NI contributions. Employers also benefit through reduced NI contributions.  

3.2 Purchases used to be capped at £1000 spend, there is now no limit. This means that 
many e-bikes can now be purchased and also cargo/family bikes which can be used 

to transport children.  

3.3 An additional cycle to work scheme (“Bike to Work”) is due to become available to 
employees soon through the Sodexo benefits platform. This is identical in terms of 

benefits as the existing scheme but offers different suppliers. 

3.4 Since 2014, 21 employees have used the existing Cycle to Work scheme to purchase 

a bicycle, 13 of whom still work for the Council. 

 

 

Page 31 Agenda Item 8



 

4. SHIFT Scheme  
 

4.1 The Council is participating in the SHIFT scheme is promoted by Sustainability and 
Health in Future Transport. This voluntary scheme is intended to incentivise 
employees to cycle to work by making a donation to charity for the distances 

travelled on a “per km” basis.   
 

4.2 The Council will be developing the details of this scheme in Q4, with the scheme due 
to launch in the spring.  
 

5. Cycling Facilities  
 

5.1 The minimum basic facilities to support and encourage cycling to work, as 
recommended by Cycling UK1 are: 

 Secure cycle parking  
o closer than, or as close to, the nearest available car parking for the 

destination in question 

o in public view (and / or covered by additional security measures 
such as monitored CCTV or a cage with an access code)  

o sheltered (if long-stay) 
o well maintained 
o lit at night 

 Locker and storage facilities for equipment and clothing 
 Showers. Important for supporting longer journeys when it is more likely 

specialist cycling clothing will be worn.  
 
5.2 The Department for Transport’s Cycle to Work Scheme Guidance for Employers2 

notes that “any scheme will only reap the full benefits of cycling if there are suitable 
facilities to support those who choose to cycle to work. These include secure, safe 

and accessible cycle parking at their place of work and good quality shower, 
changing and locker amenities for staff who want them.” 
 

5.3 Property Services have investigated the feasibility and indicative cost of improving 
the facilities for cyclists at all of the Council’s main workplaces. 

 
5.4 For some buildings, there is no straightforward option to install these facilities. For 

example, Trinity Street has no outside space, which makes providing a secure cycle 

storage facility very difficult. For such sites, it is proposed that staff use facilities at 
another location. 

 
6. Preferred Option  
 

6.1 The following options are recommended to provide most feasible and affordable 
options which are likely to cater for the greatest number of staff, are recommended 

as follows:  

 Guildhall – conversion of G19 (former toilets adjacent to rear entrance) to 
provide shower and changing facilities. Provision of secure (lockable) covered 

cycle parking within the car park. Total cost £28,100. 
 

                                                           
1 https://www.cyclinguk.org/article/campaigns-guide/cycle-parking-good-practice 
2 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/845725/cycle-to-
work-guidance.pdf 

Page 32



 

 Crematorium – reinstatement of existing shower facility (which would also 
benefit grounds maintenance staff), purchase of outdoor storage facility to 

compensate for loss of the storage area, and installation of public bike rack 
with open shelter. Total cost £15,535.  

 

 Sixways Depot – replacement of the existing cycle locking facility with more 
secure, easier to use ‘Sheffield’ cycle stands and refurbishment of the 
outdated shower facilities. Total cost £5,750. 

 

 St Martin’s Gate Car Park – provision of ‘Sheffield’ cycle stands in the car park 
(utilising one parking space). Currently there is no cycle parking for staff or 

public use at St Martin’s Gate car park. Total cost £615. 
 

 Museum and Art Gallery – existing facilities adequate, although capacity of 

cycle parking post Covid will be kept under review. 
 

 Trinity Street – no on-site facilities proposed due to lack of external space. 

Alternative facilities at Museum and Art Gallery and Guildhall. 
 

 Commandery – existing cycle parking facilities are available. No additional 
facilities are proposed due to the nature of the building. Alternative changing 

facilities available at Guildhall. 

6.2 The total cost of these recommendations is £50,000.   

6.3 In addition to the provision of improved facilities for cyclists, it is proposed to offer 
free cycle training (Bikeability) to employees to increase confidence to cycle. This will 

be funded from the existing corporate training budget as required. 

7. Alternative Options Considered 
 

7.1 Do nothing. The Council’s Environmental Sustainability Action Plan has committed to 
provide cycle storage and showering facilities at all workplaces. Do nothing is not 

recommended.  

7.2 Alternatively, works could be limited to the Guildhall and Depot which would cost 
£10k less and cover the majority of Council staff. This would not provide facilities for 

staff at the Crematorium as this location is remote from other sites. 

8. Implications 

 
8.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

 

An estimated capital budget of up to £50,000 is required to carry out the 
improvements included in this report. 

 
This can be built into the Council’s capital programme with a small impact on 
revenue expenditure.  

 
8.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

 
No legal or governance implications have been identified.  
 

Page 33



 

8.3 Risk Implications 
 

No risk implications have been identified.  
 

8.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

 
The proposals within this report directly deliver on the action plan approved by 

Environment Committee. This work supports the Council’s commitment to reduce 
carbon emissions, in line with the target to achieve carbon neutrality for the Council 
and the wider city by 2030. By encouraging staff to cycle to and at work, and 

providing the facilities that staff need to do this, emissions from transport usage 
would be reduced. 

 
The Councils Environmental Sustainability strategy recognises the role of the Council 

as a Civic leader. Providing good facilities for employees and encouraging cycling to 
work supports this role and helps to promote this to other organisations. 
 

8.5 Equality Implications 
 

No significant implications have been identified. 
 

8.6 Human Resources Implications 

 
Improving facilities for Council employees enhances the offer and may help with staff 

recruitment and retention.  
 
8.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
Encouraging staff to cycle to work and providing the facilities which will enable them 

to do this could improve mental and physical wellbeing for the staff who start to 
cycle to work. 
 

The proposals within this report will provide enhanced staff welfare facilities and 
support an ongoing review of welfare facilities across all locations. 

 

8.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

As stated, these recommendations help to deliver on the commitments to reduce 

carbon emissions outlined in the Council’s approved Environmental Sustainability 
Strategy. Improving facilities for cyclists are identified as an action within the 
accompanying action plan.  

 

 
 
 

Ward(s):   All Wards 
Contact Officer: Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer, 01905 

722364, ruth.corrall@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: None  

Page 34

mailto:ruth.corrall@worcester.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Review of Alcohol & Drugs Policy & Procedure
	Appendix - Alcohol  Drugs Policy  Procedure V1.1e

	6 Adoption of a New Menopause Policy
	Appendix - Menopause Policy - v0.2

	7 Outcome of Postal Vote Review - May 2021 Elections
	8 Employee Facilities for Cycling to Work

